
WCCUSD 

Citizens' Bond Oversight 
Committee 

Meeting Agenda and Packet for November 13, 2023 

1400 Marina Way South, Richmond, CA 94804 

CBOC members are requested to contact the chairperson, Lorraine Humes, if they are unable to attend the 
meeting at email: lhumeswccusdcboc2@gmail.net 

Page 1 of 71

mailto:lhumeswccusdcboc2@gmail.net


AGENDA 

   WCCUSD CITIZENS’ BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

(Bond Measures D, E and R)  

November 13, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 

1400 Marina Way South, Richmond CA 94804 

(In Person Meeting) 

To join by computer, please click the link below to join the webinar 

https://wccusd.zoom.us/j/95267496270 
Or by Telephone: US: 1+(669) 444-9171 / Webinar ID: 952 6749 6270 

OPENING PROCEDURES: 
A. Call to order / Pledge of Allegiance
B. Comments by Chairperson (3 minutes)
C. Roll Call

Chairperson: Lorraine Humes Ariel Xi 
Vice Chairperson: Brendan Havenar-Daughton Don Gosney 
Secretary: Jia Ma 

Quorum is a majority of committee members. 

D. Public Comment
This time is reserved for members of the public to address the Committee on Bond Program issues
not already appearing on the agenda. Comments are limited to three minutes per speaker and ten
minutes per topic. (By a majority vote of the CBOC members in attendance, the time limit may be
extended.) No discussion is allotted on public comment. The law does not permit any action to be
taken, nor extended discussion of any items not on the agenda. The CBOC members may briefly
respond to statements made for questions posed, however, for further information, please contact
the CBOC Chairperson for the item of discussion to be placed on a future agenda
lorraine.humes@wccusd.net
(Brown Act §54954.3(b))

The public will be able to comment on the agenda items (two minutes per speaker) 

E. Approval of the Agenda (3 minutes)

Page 2 of 71

https://wccusd.zoom.us/j/95267496270
mailto:%20lorraine.humes@wccusd.net
mailto:%20lorraine.humes@wccusd.net


GUEST SPEAKER : (30 minutes) 
Carolyn Castillo, President of the California Association of Bond Oversight Committees 

 (CABOC) -  Topic: The CABOC Website Academy 
Attachments: Carolyn’s biography and slide presentation of Site Visit Course 

DISTRICT REPORTS: 
F. Bond Program Project Status and Financial Reports (Luis Freese/Melissa Payne/Ellen Mejia-

Hooper)
(60 minutes)
1. Financial Reports / Training on the Bond Program Management Plan (BPMP)
2. Bond Project Reports / Training on Project Status Report form

CBOC REPORTS: 
G. Action Items (20 minutes total)

1. Approval of Minutes (3 minutes)
(Unless pulled from the consent calendar by a member of the CBOC, staff or the public, consent
items are approved without discussion) 

a. Draft of September 12, 2022 minutes
b. Draft of September 11, 2023 minutes

2. Annual Report Update – Lorraine Humes
3. BOE accepting the 2021-2022 independent financial and performance audit (15 minutes)

A tape of Luis’ presentation of the Bond program’s audit reports on 9/20/23:
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=pmJt_bPyJp4 (section 2:16:12 – 2:25:21)

DISCUSSION: (10 MINUTES) – Lorraine Humes 
Using the Accounts Payable Check Lists from July and August 2023 we will look for ‘red flags’ 

   REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
H. Information Request Log
I. CBOC Membership Roster
J. 2023 CBOC Attendance Chart

NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING – December 11, 2023 

ADJOURNMENT 

TRAINING (60 minutes) – Proposition 39, CA Constitution Article XII A Section 1 (b)(3), Ed Codes, 
  Measure R 

Disability Information 

Upon written request to the district, disability related modifications or accommodations—including auxiliary 
aids or services—will be provided. Contact the Superintendent’s Office at (510) 231-1101 at least 48 hours in 

advance of the meeting 

Page 3 of 71

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=pmJt_bPyJp4


Carolyn Castillo, President, California Association of Bond Oversight 
Committees 
Carolyn is the current President of the California Association of Bond Oversight 
Committees. Carolyn served on the El Rancho Unified School District School Board 
from 2018 -2022. Prior to being elected, Carolyn served on the Citizen’s Bond 
Oversight Committee. Carolyn background in facilities management complements 
the diverse experience to the board for effective oversight. 
Retired from Boeing’s Defense, Space and Security (BDS) business unit, Carolyn was 
a Program Management Specialist. In that capacity, Carolyn was responsible for 
deploying program management processes across various business units and 
identifying improvement opportunities. Additionally, Carolyn conducted internal 
organizational effectiveness assessments and served as an external assessor for 
the California Council for Excellence (CAPE) 
Carolyn is a published author of peer reviewed papers relating to Business 
Continuity. In addition, she was a contributing author for the Facilities Design and 
Management Handbook published by McGraw-Hill. Ms. Castillo served on the 
editorial board of the Journal of Business Continuity & Emergency Management 
from 2007 through 2011. 
Ms. Castillo holds a Master of Management from the University of Redlands, a 
Bachelor of Science in Industrial Technology and Bachelor of Arts, Psychology from 
California State University Long Beach. Other training includes Six Sigma Green Belt 
and Lean+ Executive Training and Standard Capability Maturity Model Integration 
(CMMI) and Appraisal Method (SCAMPI) In addition, Ms. Castillo is a member of the
International Facilities Management Association where she was a speaker at its
World Workplace Conference in 2003.

Page 4 of 71



Site Visits

This course describes why it is important to hold site visits, 
what to look for and red flags

Prepared by: Carolyn Castillo
1Page 5 of 71



Site Visits – A Look and See Experience

• As a Citizen Bond Oversight Committee
Member, you will

• Review design and construction drawings
• Walk around the School Facility
• Observe what construction work is being

performed,
• See the construction work in progress
• Review Project Schedule
• Report your observations

• Why it is important – you will see tax
dollars at work! Construction Matters!Before: Convert to Innovation Lab

2Page 6 of 71



Get Ready – your preparation

• Schedule your site visit: 1-1/2 hour
• Dress appropriately: Business casual, flat shoes, closed toe. If required, a

hard hat should be provided.
• Review the project scope, schedule and understand what phase of the

project you will be observing
• If available, review design and construction drawings
• Understand the total project budget and actual expenditures up-to-date
• Take a notebook and camera/phone to take notes and pictures
• Tour participants: Introduce each other and remember school may be in

session and direct questions only to the Project Manager.

3Page 7 of 71



Exteriors
• Walking to the construction site

• Condition of walkways, landscape and
overhangs.

• Condition of walls and windows
• Location of doors and windows
• Lighting

• What is the building use?
• Classroom, library, labs, cafeteria
• If a “wing”, how may adjacent

classrooms?
• Size of room (square footage)
• Any room within a room?

• Any noticeable spots, leaks on
overhang?

4Page 8 of 71



Interior – Before upgrades

• Inside a classroom
• Ceiling, Floors, Windows
• Lighting, electrical outlets and cabling
• Sinks
• Air conditioning, ventilation
• Cabinets, furnishing, furniture

• Did you see
• Water stains on ceilings, missing ceiling tiles. Floors cracks,

painted windows
• Lights not workings, few electrical outlets and cabling not

placed correctly.
• Window openings
• Sinks – old, stained, not working
• Air conditioning – none, not working. Ventilation not working
• Cabinets full, old furniture, artwork hanging everywhere

• Hazardous Condition
• Mildew, Leaks, Asbestos on window grout, floor tiles.

5Page 9 of 71



Interior – After Construction is complete
• Inside a classroom

• New Flooring
• Dropped ceiling removed, replace with open

ceiling
• Fluorescent lighting remains
• Glass rolling or folding doors
• Sink against wall, near monitor
• Electrical/cable uses drops
• Patio area w/o canopy

• Did the completed project match the
design?

• Any flaws in the design such as TV monitor
over sinks?

6Page 10 of 71



Construction Guidelines

• Demolition
• Barriers set up
• Keep materials within perimeter

• Have a plan for adjacent buildings
• Ensure after work is complete, no loose

ends.
• Picture depicts stairway with no

termination point.
• Getting rid of old furniture and furnishing

7Page 11 of 71



Construction  - Discoveries

• Discovery during construction
• When the walls and floors are

removed, surprise
• Termites – destroyed structural beams
• Drains – filled with concrete

• Construction Change Notice
• Unplanned work

8Page 12 of 71



Review – A Finish Product?

9

• Carpet substituted – lower quality
• Paint – wall painted but tiles not painted
• Chairs recommended to allow for easy

movement but difficult to keep align – rows

Page 13 of 71



A little analysis/ Reporting
• Many construction projects go over budget. You can predict if that is

the case for your project by doing a little analysis
• Estimate what work was completed? 25% 50% 75% or 90%
• Look up reported project budget and actual expenditures to date. Then

calculate Actual expenditure/project budget.
• How do the numbers match up.. For example 50% of work completed and

actual expenditure is 60%. If expenditure higher, then potential overspending

• Don’t be afraid to ask about the budget.
• You can help identify potential overrun.

• Reporting – after the site visit; write a report noting your
observations including pictures. This serves as a historical record.

10Page 14 of 71



CBOC Focus

• Public Reporting
• At the end of the site visit; write a report noting your observations including

pictures. This serves as a historical record.
• Remember, you are the eyes and ears for the public. Without you, the public

may not get know what work is being performed using Bond Funds
• Be aware of Red Flags

• Your role > Plan and participate on site visits

11Page 15 of 71



Check 
Date

Invoice
Number

Invoice
Date Amount 

chk date inv no  amt 

         495,815.83 

09/26/23 1000004033‐5A 09/12/23          493,175.83 
09/26/23 1911 08/31/23               2,640.00 

      3,431,919.27 

09/26/23 10000040335B 09/12/23       3,429,519.27 
09/26/23 1912 08/31/23               2,400.00 

      2,698,994.79 

09/19/23 28714 08/09/23             18,274.68 
09/26/23 1000003734‐24B 09/09/23             21,165.36 
09/26/23 1000003734‐24A 09/09/23       2,635,955.43 
09/19/23 211400 08/16/23             23,599.32 

         436,453.87 

09/19/23 1000004138‐3 08/30/23          257,009.90 
09/26/23 INV‐131138 07/12/23          170,384.22 
09/19/23 277433 08/22/23 819.75 
09/19/23 60989 07/31/23               3,240.00 
09/26/23 61043 08/31/23               5,000.00 

           12,933.46 

09/26/23 25015 09/11/23             12,933.46 

         111,809.30 

09/26/23 01 13502 08/24/23             14,595.80 
09/19/23 1. 06/30/23             46,310.81 
09/26/23 2. 07/31/23             44,494.69 
09/19/23 169667 08/11/23               5,767.20 
09/26/23 170050 09/12/23 640.80 

550.00 

09/26/23 19907 09/18/23 550.00 

         152,250.00 

09/19/23 0221629 07/10/23             30,450.00 
09/19/23 0222250 08/10/23             45,675.00 
09/19/23 0223887 09/11/23             76,125.00 

         737,184.49 

09/19/23 013‐3322 08/15/23             20,909.00 
09/26/23 014‐3418 09/14/23               8,363.60 
09/19/23 2 09/08/23             25,920.00 
09/26/23 1000004154‐2 09/13/23          681,991.89 

              1,537.50 

09/19/23 11284 08/10/23               1,200.00 
09/26/23 11285 09/07/23 337.50 

   8,079,448.51 

inv desc

DW PROJECT LABOR ADMIN SVCS AUGUST 

COLLINS  ES CNP PROJ JULY 2023

LAKE ES TESTING & INSPECTION SVCS 
LAKE ES CAMPUS REPLACE 

Grand Total

227623 21‐9748‐5890‐615

HERCULES MS/HS SCIENCE BUILDING 

Site 615 ‐ OPERATIONAL SUPPT SRVS CE

EMPLOYERS ADVOCATE INC 227451 21‐9748‐5890‐615 DISTRICT WIDE PROJECT LABOR ADMIN 
EMPLOYERS ADVOCATE INC

HERCULES M/H SCHOOL CNP ARCH&ENG 
EDWARD SIT 227448 21‐9745‐6214‐376 HERCULES MHS SCIENCE BLDG CNP 

Site 376 ‐ HERCULES SR HIGH

DSK LLP 227442 21‐9745‐6201‐376 HERCULES M/H SCHOOL CNP ARC & ENG 
DSK LLP 227616 21‐9745‐6201‐376

SOLPAC CONSTRUCTION INC 227774 21‐9748‐6211‐376

RICHMOND HS MODERNIZATION PROJ 
DLR GROUP INC, A CALIFORNIA CO 227440 21‐9747‐6190‐364 RICHMOND HS MODERNIZATION PROJ 

Site 364 ‐ RICHMOND HIGH

DLR GROUP INC, A CALIFORNIA CO 227440 21‐9747‐6190‐364 RICHMOND HS MODERNIZATION PROJ 
DLR GROUP INC, A CALIFORNIA CO 227440 21‐9747‐6190‐364

Site 362 ‐ PINOLE VALLEY HIGH

THUNDER MOUNTAIN ENTERPRISES,  227790 21‐9745‐5860‐362 PVHS FIELD HOUSE AND BLEACHERS 

KENNEDY HS BLEACHERS AND PRESS JULY 
HMC ARCHITECTS 227655 21‐9747‐6201‐360 KENNEDY HS BLEACHERS AND PRESS BOX 

KENNEDY HS MODERNIZATION PROJET 
HKIT ARCHITECTS 227654 21‐9747‐6190‐360 KENNEDY HS MODERNIZATION PROJECT 

Site 360 ‐ KENNEDY HIGH

DIVISION OF STATE ARCHITECT 227615 21‐9747‐6190‐360 KENNEDY HS PRESS BOX & BLEACHER 
HKIT ARCHITECTS 227474 21‐9747‐6190‐360

HMC ARCHITECTS 227475 21‐9747‐6201‐360

Site 157 ‐ STEGE

QUATTROCCHI KWOK ARCHITECTS 227746 21‐9745‐6211‐157 STEGE ES CRITICAL NEEDS PROJ AUGUST 

RIVERSIDE ES ‐ ARCHITECTURAL & ENG 
SVA ARCHITECTS, INC 227783 21‐9745‐6201‐150 RIVERSIDE ES ‐ ARCHITECTURAL&ENG SVCS 

RIVERSIDE ES PLAYSTRUCTURE JULY 2023
NINYO AND MOORE GEOTECHNICAL A 227515 21‐9745‐5890‐150 RIVERSIDE ES PLAYGROUND TEST & 

Site 150 ‐ RIVERSIDE

ERA CONSTRUCTION INC 227452 21‐9745‐6170‐150 RIVERSIDE ES RELOCATABLES AUGUST 2023
LANDSCAPE STRUCTURES INC 227673 21‐9745‐6400‐150

SVA ARCHITECTS, INC 227554 21‐9745‐6201‐150

CONSOLIDATED ENGINEERING LABOR 227434 21‐9745‐5890‐134
ALTEN CONSTRUCTION INC 227579 21‐9748‐6211‐134

LAKE ES CAMPUS REPLACEMENT 7/5/23‐
ALTEN CONSTRUCTION INC 227579 21‐9745‐6201‐134 LAKE ES CAMPUS REPLACE DESIGN 

227800 21‐9745‐6214‐110

Site 134 ‐ LAKE

ALAN KROPP AND ASSOCIATES INC 227405 21‐9745‐6190‐134

CAMERON SCHOOL CNP PROJ JULY 2023

Site 110 ‐ COLLINS

ALTEN CONSTRUCTION INC 227579 21‐9745‐6211‐110 COLLINS ES CNP & HVAC JULY 2023
BRADLEY J WILLIAMSON

Site 108 ‐ CAMERON

ALTEN CONSTRUCTION INC 227579 21‐9745‐6211‐108 CAMERON SCHOOL CCNP & HVAC JULY 
BRADLEY J WILLIAMSON 227800 21‐9745‐6214‐108

vndr name chk no short acct

A/P Check List
September, 2023

Fund 21

Vendor Name
Check 

No.
Short

Account Invoice Description

 10/5/2023 1:16:26 PM Page 1 of 1 AP Check List 10.05.2023,  dc

Page 16 of 71



Site Name
 Original
Budget * 

 Board
Approved

Budget
5/17/2023 

 Expended
FY 99-01 thru

FY 22-23 

 Expended  
thru Sept
FY 23-24 

 Expended
Total

thru 09/30/2023 

 Committed
Balance

as of 
09/30/2023 

 Budget
Balance

as of 
09/30/2023 

 Notes 

BAYVIEW 17,732,392         19,850,802         19,850,802         19,850,802         -                -                 Footnote 1

CHAVEZ 1,339,784           1,058,234           1,058,234           1,058,234           -                -                 Footnote 1

COLLINS 993,294              8,938,871           2,967,228           3,583,085      6,550,314           1,652,100     736,457          Footnote 3

CORONADO 11,278,047         43,022,627         43,022,627         43,022,627         -                -                 Footnote 1

DOVER 13,070,243         35,095,267         35,095,267         35,095,267         -                -                 Footnote 1

DOWNER 28,819,079         33,415,902         33,415,902         33,415,902         -                -                 Footnote 1

ELLERHORST 11,238,341         13,931,806         13,931,806         13,931,806         -                -                 Footnote 1

FAIRMONT 10,971,356         6,864,259           6,602,441           -                 6,602,441           -                261,817          Footnote 3

FORD 11,839,322         30,817,526         30,817,526         30,817,526         -                -                 Footnote 1

GRANT 1,409,600           2,155,565           2,155,565           2,155,565           -                -                 Footnote 1

HANNA RANCH 680,923              783,349              783,349              783,349              -                -                 Footnote 1

HARDING 15,574,211         22,632,446         22,632,446         22,632,446         -                -                 Footnote 1

HARMON KNOLLS - 448,435              448,435              448,435              -                -                 Footnote 1

HIGHLAND 13,504,714         2,679,839           1,932,714           1,932,714           -                747,125          Footnote 3

KENSINGTON 16,397,920         19,343,892         19,343,892         19,343,892         -                -                 Footnote 1

KING 16,688,732         25,342,166         25,342,166         25,342,166         -                -                 Footnote 1

LAKE 822,657              67,247,823         17,969,780         4,991,172      22,960,952         35,842,639    8,444,232       Footnote 3

LINCOLN 15,225,821         17,676,561         17,676,561         17,676,561         -                -                 Footnote 1

LUPINE HILLS 16,111,242         15,395,678         15,395,678         15,395,678         -                -                 Footnote 1

MADERA 11,088,764         12,233,801         12,233,801         12,233,801         -                -                 Footnote 1

MICHELLE OBAMA** 13,673,885         44,129,324         43,173,377         43,173,377         -                955,947          Footnote 3

MIRA VISTA 13,928,364         16,651,130         16,651,130         16,651,130         -                -                 Footnote 1

MONTALVIN 15,904,716         16,791,028         16,791,028         16,791,028         -                -                 Footnote 1

MURPHY 13,554,495         15,619,655         15,619,655         15,619,655         -                -                 Footnote 1

NYSTROM 20,999,690         47,800,813         47,800,813         47,800,813         -                -                 Footnote 1

OHLONE 14,174,928         34,492,752         34,492,752         34,492,752         -                -                 Footnote 1

OLINDA 1,170,596           2,080,188           2,080,188           2,080,188           -                -                 Footnote 1

PERES 19,752,789         21,424,293         21,424,293         21,424,293         -                -                 Footnote 1

RIVERSIDE 13,439,831         21,511,005         17,806,316         760,255         18,566,572         154,598        2,789,835       Footnote 3

SHANNON 1,157,736           10,855,163         1,922,129           1,821             1,923,950           156,689        8,774,524       Footnote 3

SHELDON 14,968,745         15,102,837         15,102,837         15,102,837         -                -                 Footnote 1

STEGE 13,000,749         6,345,886           3,481,786           25,345           3,507,131           15,455          2,823,300       Footnote 3

STEWART 12,710,427         16,737,037         16,737,037         16,737,037         -                -                 Footnote 1

TARA HILLS 14,160,935         14,975,067         14,975,067         14,975,067         -                -                 Footnote 1

VALLEY VIEW 11,117,405         10,222,362         10,222,362         10,222,362         -                -                 Footnote 1

VERDE 15,709,690         16,065,870         16,065,870         16,065,870         -                -                 Footnote 1

WASHINGTON 14,051,720         15,322,847         15,322,847         15,322,847         -                -                 Footnote 1

Elementary Total 438,263,142       705,062,106       632,345,708       9,361,678      641,707,386       37,821,481    25,533,237     

B R SOSKIN MS*** 1,205,711           6,415,493           6,415,493           6,415,493           -                -                 Footnote 1

DEJEAN MS 64,929                381,209              381,209              381,209              -                -                 Footnote 1

HELMS MS 61,287,986         83,432,888         83,432,888         83,432,888         -                -                 Footnote 1

HERCULES MS 602,982              699,000              699,000              699,000              -                -                 Footnote 1

KOREMATSU MS 37,937,901         73,382,179         72,734,009         72,734,009         265,130        383,040          Footnote 2

PINOLE MS 38,828,979         56,689,430         56,689,430         56,689,430         -                -                 Footnote 1

Middle Sch Total 139,928,488       221,000,199       220,352,029       -                 220,352,029       265,130        383,040          

DE ANZA HS 105,389,888       132,236,248       132,236,248       132,236,248       -                0 Footnote 1

EL CERRITO HS 93,605,815         146,850,105       146,850,105       146,850,105       -                -                 Footnote 1

GREENWOOD 35,315,772         79,583,607         79,583,607         79,583,607         -                -                 Footnote 1

HERCULES HS 12,603,343         22,995,019         3,991,492           1,336,558      5,328,050           14,939,613    2,727,356       Footnote 3

KENNEDY HS 89,903,130         53,654,981         40,132,693         363,844         40,496,537         747,650        12,410,795     Footnote 3 & 4

Report#2

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bond Program Spending to Date by Site

Data as of 09/30/2023
Updated 10/13/2023

Page 1 of 2

Page 17 of 71



Site Name
 Original
Budget * 

 Board
Approved

Budget
5/17/2023 

 Expended
FY 99-01 thru

FY 22-23 

 Expended  
thru Sept
FY 23-24 

 Expended
Total

thru 09/30/2023 

 Committed
Balance

as of 
09/30/2023 

 Budget
Balance

as of 
09/30/2023 

 Notes 

Report#2

WEST CONTRA COSTA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Bond Program Spending to Date by Site

Data as of 09/30/2023
Updated 10/13/2023

PINOLE VALLEY HS 124,040,286       216,549,580       214,360,241       850                214,361,091       101,951        2,086,538       Footnote 2

RICHMOND HS 94,720,910         43,622,087         41,872,122         152,250         42,024,372         153,266        1,444,449       Footnote 3 & 4

VISTA HS 3,566,208           7,236,543           7,236,543           7,236,543           -                -                 Footnote 1

High Sch Total 559,145,352       702,728,170       666,263,050       1,853,502      668,116,551       15,942,480    18,669,137     

ADAMS MS 703,660              691,211              691,211              691,211              -                -                 Footnote 1

CAMERON 284,012              3,622,195           2,332,796           494,319         2,827,115           357,299        437,781          Footnote 3

CASTRO 11,901,504         620,944              620,944              620,944              -                -                 Footnote 1

DELTA NSS 152,564              152,226              152,226              152,226              -                -                 Footnote 1

EL SOBRANTE 187,343              536,231              536,231              536,231              -                -                 Footnote 1

HARBOUR WAY 121,639              121,944              121,944              121,944              -                -                 Footnote 1

KAPPA NSS 109,809              109,831              109,831              109,831              -                -                 Footnote 1

NORTH CAMPUS 169,849              205,450              205,450              205,450              -                -                 Footnote 1

OMEGA NSS 117,742              118,313              118,313              118,313              -                -                 Footnote 1

SEAVIEW 178,534              499,116              499,116              499,116              -                -                 Footnote 1

SIGMA NSS 110,728              110,949              110,949              110,949              -                -                 Footnote 1

TLC 118,020              116,673              116,673              116,673              -                -                 Footnote 1

WEST HERCULES - 56,847                56,847                56,847                -                -                 Footnote 1

Closed/Program Total 14,155,404         6,961,930           5,672,531           494,319         6,166,850           357,299        437,781          

CENTRAL 67,713,312         111,331,634       106,422,079       123,465         106,545,544       2,000,234     2,785,856       Budget thru 22-23

RCP CHARTER 8,148,550           4,415,204           4,415,204           4,415,204           -                -                 Footnote 1

TECHNOLOGY 35,000,000         35,362,000         35,106,997         35,106,997         145,601        109,402          Footnote 2

Admin/Other Total 110,861,862       151,108,838       145,944,280       123,465         146,067,745       2,145,835     2,895,258       
GRAND TOTAL 1,262,354,248    1,786,861,244    1,670,577,598    11,832,964    1,682,410,563    56,532,226    47,918,545     

* Original Budget provided is based on Report#2 dated April 30, 2018, and has not been reconciled.

** Board approved renaming of Wilson Elementary school to Michelle Obama School on 02/12/20.

*** Board approved renaming of Crespi Middle school to Betty Reid Soskin on 06/23/21.
Footnote 1: Site projects are completed.
Footnote 2: Site Legacy projects are under planning, construction or in closeout.
Footnote 3: Site Legacy projects are completed and 2016 Facilities Master Plan/2020 Msr R Projects are under planning, construction or in closeout.
Footnote 4: $1,000,000 Budget for Modernization Project, using Measure 2020R 
Note:. Measure 1998E is not covered under Proposition 39 regulations for school bonds, and is not ordinarily reported in the Bond Program expenditure reports.
          The following report shows Measure 1998E projects by site with state funded DeJean middle school project.
Measure 1998E Project Budget Expended

DeJean Middle School 36,836,215            36,836,215            - 
1998E Project 23,994,285               23,994,285               -

State Fund Project 12,841,930               12,841,930               -

Pinole Valley High School 190,571                 190,571                 - 
Central Program Coordination 16,276,518            16,276,518            - 

Total 53,303,304            53,303,304            - 

Page 2 of 2

Page 18 of 71



West Contra Costa Unified 
School District

Utilizing the Bond Program Management Plan 

November 13, 2023

Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee

Page 19 of 71



Background

• Purpose: Document all processes, procedures, and resources into one
document to ensure effective internal controls and communication of  the
management of  the Bond Program

• Features of  the Plan: Collaborative, Supplemental, Ongoing
Implementation & Improvement, Aligned with Best Practices

• Bond Program Management Plan website
https://www.wccusd.net/Page/13520

Page 20 of 71

https://www.wccusd.net/Page/13520


Program Management Plan: 
Supplemental

The Plan is a day to day guide that 
does not replace Regulations, 
Policies or Contracts
Website References 
Acronym Guide
Staff  & Vendor Education
Promote Transparency

 
Page 21 of 71

Presenter Notes
Presentation Notes
This Bond Program Management Plan is a living document which is intended to be revised and refined over time to reflect emerging decisions, improvements, and best practices needed to guide the program to a successful conclusion.  



Question #1: Acronyms

• Excerpt from Introduction

“Acronyms are spelled out completely the first time 
that they appear in a larger section (Program & 
Operations, Administration, Fiscal, and Project 
Management) and then appear in acronym form. A 
complete list of  the acronyms used in the Bond 
Program Management Plan is attached in the 
Appendices as Appendix 3.”

Page 22 of 71



Question #2: Agencies Having Jurisdiction

Page 23 of 71



Question #3: Contractor v. Design Builder

Page 24 of 71



Question #4: Change Orders
(Proposed Change Order v Change Order)

Page 25 of 71



Question #4: Change Orders 
(Board Approval / Ratification)

Page 26 of 71



Question #5: Construction Consultants
Architects, Inspectors & Construction Managers

Page 27 of 71



SVA Architects, Inc. 21-9745-6201-150

ERA Construction, Inc. 21-9745-6170-150

MUNIS Manual Short Account
Fund –Resource-Object-Site

Page 28 of 71



Projects Status Update

Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee
November 13, 2023

1Page 29 of 71



Project StatusUpdate

(DSA) Division of the StateArchitect (RFQ) Request for Qualification
(RFQ/P) Request for Qualifications & Proposal (RFP) Request for ProposalLEGEND & ACRONYMS 2

SITE PROJECT TYPE STATUS

PLANNING

Kennedy HS Scoping and Prioritization BOND Pre-Design

Richmond HS Scoping and Prioritization BOND Pre-Design

Stege ES Scoping and Prioritization BOND Pre-Design

SITE PROJECT TYPE STATUS

DESIGN Kennedy HS Critical Needs: Demo 100 and 200 
Building BOND Schematic Design / Design 

Development

SITE PROJECT TYPE STATUS

PROCUREMENT Shannon ES Critical Needs: MPR BOND Out to Bid

SITE PROJECT TYPE STATUS

CONSTRUCTION

Lake Campus Replacement BOND Increment 1 – Complete
Increment 2 – Construction 

Hercules M/HS Critical Needs: Science Building BOND Construction

Collins ES Critical Needs: HVAC Addition BOND Paused until Equipment 
Delivery

Cameron School Critical Needs: HVAC Addition BOND Paused until Equipment 
Delivery

Riverside ES Critical Needs: Playground 
Improvements BOND Closeout

E-Rate Year 24 Indoor/Outdoor Wireless Upgrades 
at Various Sites

E-RATE &
BOND Closeout

Kennedy Fields Field and Bleachers Replacement BOND Closeout

Pinole Valley HS Fields Restoration & Bleachers BOND California Geotechnical 
Review in Progress  

Page 30 of 71



Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement

This two-phase project is the replacement of the Lake ES campus.  The first 
phase includes new classrooms, library, and admin buildings and site work on 
the East half of the campus. The second phase will include new kindergarten 
and cafeteria buildings and remaining site work on the West half of the 
campus. 

3Page 31 of 71



Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement

4

Before (September 2023) Before (October 2023) 

Page 32 of 71



Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement

5Page 33 of 71



Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement

6

Last Month

Page 34 of 71



Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement

7Page 35 of 71



Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement

8Page 36 of 71



Hercules Middle and High School
Critical Needs Project  

The primary purpose of this project is to build eight permanent high-quality 
science labs for both the Middle and High Schools. This project was identified 
in the Facilities Master Plan as Critical Needs Project. Support spaces include 
science teacher workrooms and student and staff restrooms. By the end of 

the project, nine portables will be removed from the campuses.

9Page 37 of 71



Hercules M. & H.S. Critical Needs Project

Preparing the footings
10Page 38 of 71



Hercules M. & H.S. Critical Needs Project

Installing the west side bio basin
11Page 39 of 71



12

Board Workshop on November 8th
Page 40 of 71



Defining Project Scopes

13Page 41 of 71



Project Parameters

14Page 42 of 71



Measure R Bond + State Facilities Revenue

15Page 43 of 71



Recommendations To The Board For Funding 

16

Allocate the remaining Measure 
R2020 Bond Authority by 
Approving Project Budget Increase 
by

• KHS Modernization: $279.1M

• RHS Modernization: $279.1M

• and reserving $8.2M for Central
Cost (through June 30, 2030)

KHS & RHS

Page 44 of 71

Stege ES

Approve Project Budget Increase for 
Stege ES Critical Needs Project (CNP) 
using State Facilities Revenue.

Proposed $43M

Stege CNP $ 2.9M
+State Funds $40.1M



Approved Measure R Implementation Plan

17Page 45 of 71

Scope definitions for KHS and RHS were also approved at the workshop.  Stege
project scope definition is due back to the Board before May 1, 2024



Approved Option - KHS

18Page 46 of 71



Approved Option - KHS

19Page 47 of 71



Approved Option - RHS

20Page 48 of 71

Option 2 was selected as the 
basic concept with the flexibility 
to adjust the placement of the 
new 2-story building in order to 
limit interim housing and improve 
the drop-off area. 



21

Approved 
Option - RHS

Page 49 of 71



Page 50 of 71



Page 51 of 71



Page 52 of 71



Original Contract Amount

Executed Change Orders $135,276.69 1.49%

Unforeseen Conditions $103,978.32 1.15%

Owner Requested $0 0.00%

Design Changes $31,298 0.35%

Outside Agency/ Other $0 0.00%

Revised Contract Amount
(contract + $ Executed CO)

No. of Cos 7

Pending PCOs $193,842.91 2%

Rejected/Voided PCOs $52,316.42 1%

63%

Stop Notices

Pr
oj

ec
t T

ea
m

Collins ES: 
-Close in all roof penetrations that supply 
refrigerant pipes to FCU's.
-Anchor and final refrigerant and power
connections to condensing units.
-Finish installing ADA grab bars in Kinder
restroom.
-Restore landscaping at front drop off loop 
to previous conditions.

Cameron ES: 
-Completed MCT flooring in Hallways.

-Refabricate and install hand rails.
-Install Drywell for unforeseen storm drain.
-Finish HVAC commissioning and startup, 
training.
-Coordinate signage install.

Cameron ES: 
-Signage Installation.
-Paint walls in main hallways.
-Install Hand Rail.
-Restore Landscaping to previous conditions.
-Coordination for switchgear and electrical 
transfer in December.
-Punch list.

$0

Pr
oj

ec
t U

pd
at

es
Co

nt
ra

ct
 S

um
m

ar
y

Upcoming Work:

Activities Last Month:

Completed & Stored $ Billed to Date

$9,199,277

$7,163,407.14
312

Revised Project Duration

Revised Completion Date 4/15/2024

Project Status Report:
Pr

oj
ec

t S
co

pe

Remove existing heating systems and install new HVAC systems. 
New flooring at select locations, accessible restroom, classroom and 
site accessibility upgades.

$9,064,000

10/5/2023

Project No: 1000004033 DSA No: 01-119860 & 01-
119890

Sc
he

du
le

Calendar Days Elapsed

Collins ES: 
-Architectural punch list.
-Finalize Gates and Hardware.
-Complete "Cougar Pride" Striping.
-Coordination for switchgear and electrical 
transfer in December.

496

Inspector Brad Williamson

Notice to Proceed

Original Project Duration

Final Completion

Approved Time Extensions

12/6/2022

272

9/4/2023

224

Alten Construction & Co.Contractor

WCCUSDOwner

RGM KramerConstruction Manager

Cameron School Critical Needs and Collins ES 
Critical Needs

Page 53 of 71



Original Contract Amount

Executed Change Orders $135,276.69 1.49%

Unforeseen Conditions $103,978.32 1.15%

Owner Requested $0 0.00%

Design Changes $31,298 0.35%

Outside Agency/ Other $0 0.00%

Revised Contract Amount
(contract + $ Executed CO)

No. of Cos 7

Pending PCOs $193,842.91 2%

Rejected/Voided PCOs $52,316.42 1%

63%

Stop Notices

Pr
oj

ec
t T

ea
m

Collins ES: 
-Close in all roof penetrations that supply 
refrigerant pipes to FCU's.
-Anchor and final refrigerant and power
connections to condensing units.
-Finish installing ADA grab bars in Kinder
restroom.
-Restore landscaping at front drop off loop 
to previous conditions.

Cameron ES: 
-Completed MCT flooring in Hallways.

-Refabricate and install hand rails.
-Install Drywell for unforeseen storm drain.
-Finish HVAC commissioning and startup, 
training.
-Coordinate signage install.

Cameron ES: 
-Signage Installation.
-Paint walls in main hallways.
-Install Hand Rail.
-Restore Landscaping to previous conditions.
-Coordination for switchgear and electrical
transfer in December.
-Punch list.

$0

Pr
oj

ec
t U

pd
at

es
Co

nt
ra

ct
 S

um
m

ar
y

Upcoming Work:

Activities Last Month:

Completed & Stored $ Billed to Date

$9,199,277

$7,163,407.14
312

Revised Project Duration

Revised Completion Date 4/15/2024

Project Status Report:
Pr

oj
ec

t S
co

pe

Remove existing heating systems and install new HVAC systems. 
New flooring at select locations, accessible restroom, classroom and 
site accessibility upgades.

$9,064,000

10/5/2023

Project No: 1000004033 DSA No: 01-119860 & 01-
119890

Sc
he

du
le

Calendar Days Elapsed

Collins ES: 
-Architectural punch list.
-Finalize Gates and Hardware.
-Complete "Cougar Pride" Striping.
-Coordination for switchgear and electrical
transfer in December.

496

Inspector Brad Williamson

Notice to Proceed

Original Project Duration

Final Completion

Approved Time Extensions

12/6/2022

272

9/4/2023

224

Alten Construction & Co.Contractor

WCCUSDOwner

RGM KramerConstruction Manager

Cameron School Critical Needs and Collins ES 
Critical Needs

Page 54 of 71



Original Contract Amount

BOE Executed COs $0.00 0.00%

Unforeseen Conditions $0.00 0.00%

Owner Requested $0.00 0.00%

Design Changes $0.00 0.00%

Outside Agency/Other $0.00 0.00%

Project No: 1000004154 DSA No:  01-120266
Revised Contract Amount 
(Contract + $ Executed CO)

No. of PCOs 0

Pending PCOs $0.00 0.00%

Rejected/Voided PCOs $0.00 0.00%

Completed & Stored $ Billed to Date $1,261,362.40 8.08%

Stop Notices $0

114 27%

Pr
oj

ec
t T

ea
m

Sc
he

du
le

Edward Sit

8/14/2024

Owner

$15,613,00010/5/2023Project Status Report:

Pr
oj

ec
t S

co
pe

15,613,000.00

New 1 story, 14,410 sf classroom building with (8) laboratory 
classrooms, (2) lab prep rooms, restrooms, associated site work. 

Phase 1: Remove (4) middle school portables, complete student drop 
off sidewalk and paving improvements
Phase 2: New science building
Phase 3: Remove (4) high school portables and (1) restroom portable

NTP

Co
nt

ra
ct
 S

um
m

ar
y

Final Completion

Calendar Days Lapsed

Revised Completion Date

DSK Architects

Swinerton 

Soltek Pacific Construction

WCCUSD

Architect

Pr
oj

ec
t S

ta
tu

s

Project Issues:     
- Relocation of Library utilities- pending pricing, time impact

Original Project Duration

Revised Project Duration

Construction Manager

Contractor

Inspector

Approved Time Extensions

429

6/13/2023

429

8/14/2024

0

Completed Work:
- Building:
- Site: Relocate underground Library gas (unforeseen)
- Site: Pour foundation for West retaining wall adjacent to building pad
- Site: Utilities (domestic water, storm, fire, sanitary) 75% complete.
- Site: Site electrical 100% complete

Upcoming Work: 
- Building: Excavate/rebar/pour building foundations.
- Site: Form/pour West retaining walls. Construct North retaining walls
- Relocate Library refrigerant lines to above ground

Hercules Middle & High

New Science Buiilding 

1900 Refugio Valley Road
Hercules CA, 94547

Project Status Report - Hercules MHS Science_Oct 2023
Page 55 of 71



Amended Base Contract Amount

Amended Project Contingency

Amended District Contingency

Original Contract Amount

 Contract Ammendments

Revised Contract Amount

Amended Project Contingency $781,522

Executed CO $81,057 10%

Remaining Contingency $700,465 90%

Open PCOs $62,389 8%

Rejected PCOs $37,785 5%

Amended District Contingency $3,406,055

Executed CO $691,795 20%

Remaining Contingency $2,714,260 80%

Open PCOs $202,964 6%

Rejected PCOs $23,099 1%

Stop Notices $0

Activities Last Month:

55%

Upcoming Work

DSA School Inspectors, Inc.

Final Completion

Approved Time Extensions

Owner WCCUSD

Design Build Entity Alten Construction & Co.

Construction Manager RGM Kramer

Sc
he

du
le

Calendar Days Elapsed

Pr
oj

ec
t T

ea
m

800

Revised Project Duration

Revised Completion Date

8/5/2021

1258

1/24/2025

203

1461

8/15/2025

Notice to Proceed

Original Project Duration

Inspector

Pr
oj

ec
t U

pd
at

es

BldgA: Piping, conduit and ductwork installation is substantially complete. Fire 
sprinkler rough piping is complete. Roofing is complete except for the final 
coating and walk pads. Building paper envelope, metal flashing, lath is almost 
complete. Wall insulation is complete. Gypboard has started. Glazing at windows 
has started.
Bldg B: Interior wall framing is complete. Blocking, piping, conduit and ductwork 
installation is substantially complete. Roofing is complete except for final coating 
and walk pads. Building paper envelope, metal flashing, lath started. Door and 
window frames have been installed.
Bldg C: Structural and interior wall framing is complete.  Door and window 

frames have been installed.

BldgA: Building paper envelope, metal flashing, lath and plaster and stuccowork 
is in progress and will be on going for the next few months. Roof and ceiling 
insulation is in progress. Gypboard is in progress. Glazing at exterior windows is 
in progress. Interior painting will start near the end of October.
Bldg B: Wall insulation has started. Gypsum board will follow. Above ceiling 
piping, conduit and ductwork installation is in progress. 
Bldg C: Interior wall and ceiling framing is in progress. Blocking and backing is in 
progress. Roofing has started. Building paper envelope, metal flashing, lath and 
plaster and stuccowork has started and will be on going for the next few months.

Project Status Report:
Pr

oj
ec

t S
co

pe

Replacement of existing campus with construction of six new 

buildings. The first phase includes demolition of existing 
Kindergarten Building and construction of three of the new 

buildings and site work on the East half of the campus. The second 
phase will include the other three new buildings and remaining site 
work on the West half of the campus. 

$781,522

$3,406,055

$50,466,705

10/1/2023

Project No: 1000003734 DSA No: 01‐119938

Co
nt

ra
ct
 S

um
m

ar
y

Completed & Stored & Billed to Date $19,913,359 36%

$54,654,282

$2,500,000

$57,154,282

Lake Elementary School
Replacement Project

2700 11th St. 
San Pablo, CA, 94806

Page 56 of 71



Page 57 of 71



WCCUSD CITIZENS’ BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
(Bond Measures D, E and R) 

Meeting Minutes -draft 
September 12, 2022 at 6 pm 

1400 Marina Way South, Richmond CA 94804 
In Person Meeting 

Meeting video recording available on YouTube 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC9u1R1iSWbHzhieeGC5LvYA/videos 

A. Opening Procedures
B. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance

Dr Anderson called the meeting to order at 6 pm.

C. Roll Call

Members present: John Anderson, Lorraine Humes, Sallie DeWitt
Members absent: Jason Lindsey
(4 members with 3 required for a quorum)

D. Approval of Agenda

Agenda approved by unanimous consent

E. Public Comment for items not on the Agenda

No Public Comments

ACTION 

E. Consent Items
a. CBOC Information Request Log September 12, 2022
b. July 11, 2022 CBOC Meeting Draft Minutes
c. August 15, 2022 CBOC Meeting Draft Minutes

Items E.a and b. where approved by unanimous consent.. 

Draft minutes of August 15, 2022 be pulled from the Consent Agenda by Lorraine Humes 

PRESENTATION          

F. Bond Program Project Status and Financial Reports (Luis Freese/Melissa Payne/Ellen
Mejia-Hooper)

Presentation on progress of current Bond Projects including newsletters and financial reports

a. Facilities Master Plan Project Update Consolidated Budget Report
b. Consolidated Budget Report
c. Report 13 Bond Program Financial Status

Page 58 of 71

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC9u1R1iSWbHzhieeGC5LvYA/videos


d. Report 13A Variance Report
e. Report 2 Bond Program Spending to Date
f. 20-21 AP check list
g. Status of applicants for CBOC

Public Comments were received 

  DISCUSSION 

G. 2021 CBOC Annual Report (Lorraine Humes)
a. Update annual due dates for the Annual Report that were established in Resolution

21-3
b. 2021 Transitional Report Input

DISCUSSION AND ACTION 

H. Ad Hoc committee Draft WCCUSD Board Policy Citizen’s Bond Oversight Committee BP
7214.2

a. Discussion and Resolution No. 22-03
b. Resolution No. 22-03, September 12, 2022, Recommend Revised Board Policy

7214.2  
c. Motion

Mrs. DeWitt motioned that- let it be resolved that WCCUSD’s CBOC recommends that
the WCCUSD’s Board of Ed consider adopting the  revised CBOC BP 7214.2 attached to
this resolution and as amended by Melissa Payne at this meeting. The policy was drafted
by an Ad Hoc Sub-Committee consisting of two district staff and two CBOC members.

Mrs. Humes seconded the Motion

d. Discussion

Public Comments were received

e. Revised motion

Mrs. DeWitt motioned to table the vote until the next scheduled meeting on October 10,
2022
Ms. Humes seconded the motion.
Motion passed by unanimous consent.

I. Resolution No. 22-04, September 12, 2022, Re-establish an Independent WCCUSD CBOC

Mrs. DeWitt  motioned to submit Resolution 22-04 to the BOE
Ms. Humes seconded the motion.
Public Comments were received

Page 59 of 71



a. Vote
Ms. Humes -Aye
Mrs. DeWitt-Aye
Mr. Anderson-Aye
Mr. Lindsey-Absent

Motion passed 3-0 with one absent 

Mr. Anderson stated that he would make the date corrections to the resolution and sign it. He will 
also send copies to the Board and Dr. Hurst. 
With the resolution being passed and distributed the October 10 meeting may not happen. 

J. Next Scheduled Meeting
a. October 10 , 2022   6 pm

K. Adjournment

Mr. Anderson adjourned the meeting at 8:13pm.

Minutes prepared by John Anderson, CBOC Secretary (October 2, 2023) 

Page 60 of 71



MINUTES 

WCCUSD CITIZENS’ BOND OVERSIGHTCOMMITTEE 

Bond Measures D, E and R 

          September 11, 2023 at 6 pm 

1400 Marina Way South, Richmond CA 94804 

OPENING PROCEDURES: 
A. Called to order at 6:02  pm and recessed
B. Comments by Chairperson – the next schedule meeting

date of October 9th is a WCCISD holiday so next CBOC
meeting will be moved to October 16th.

C. Roll Call
Chairperson: Lorraine Humes         present Jia Ma   present  
Vice Chairperson: Brendan Havenar- 
Daughton    present(arrived at 6:13 pm) 

Tamecia Vallot  absent (excused) 

Secretary: John Anderson       present Ariel Xi  present 
Anton Jungherr   present 
Quorum is 4 of 7 members.  6 members present. 

D. Public Comment
No Public Comments 

E. Approval of the Agenda

Mr Junger moved to have Item G to Item H.2 and motion was seconded. 

Motion failed 2 Yes, 3 No and 1 abstention 
(Jungherr, Xi Yes, Humes, Havenar-Daughton, Anderson No, Ma abstained) 

Agenda accepted as presented 

   DISTRICT REPORTS: 

F. Bond Project Reports
Financial Reports 
Applications for CBOC membership 

Requests for backup information from staff needs to be submitted to staff in writing so it 
is identified on the Information request log 

Public comments received 

Page 61 of 71



i. 
   DISCUSSION 

G. BOE Bylaws Committee edits for BP 7214.2 (CBOC)
1 Public comments received 

H. Action Items
1  Draft of August 14, 2023 minutes approved with corrections 
2 Anton Jungherr memorandum/comments on BP 7214.2 (not covered in item G) deferred 

to a future meeting 
3 Annual Report 2021/2023 

  Period Covered 
     Table of Contents 
     Assignments 

4  Formally amend Chairperson CBOC Status Report Distribution.  Not formal amendment 
necessary.   

 REFERENCE DOCUMENTS 
1. Information Request Log
2. CBOC Membership Roster
3. 2023 CBOC Attendance Chart

    NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING 
I. October 16, 2023  6pm

B. ADJOURNMENT
A. Meeting adjourned at 8:30 pm

Minutes prepared by John Anderson, CBOC Secretary 

Page 62 of 71



Page 63 of 71



Page 64 of 71



Page 65 of 71



Page 66 of 71



A/P (Accounts Payable) Check List Evalua�on for Jul. & Aug. 2023 

July 

1. Ck# 225663 and #225868 / both for reten�on / to Alten Construc�on Inc & BHM Construc�on /
object code = 9135 = cash with fiscal agent / site code = 000 = undistributed  What is reten�on
and why in cash?

2. Ck # 226173 & Ck # 226389 same amount ($1,905,273.16) / to Alten Construc�on Inc (Object
code 6211 = main Contractor) / for Lake ES /from services in June Is this duplicate payment
mistake?

3. Ck # 225372 (4) all object code 5895 (legal fees) / to Orbach Huff & Henderson LLP / for Lake ES /
from services in Feb. & Mar. Why are we paying legal fees on Lake ES construc�on – possible
change order rejec�on? (See August #3)

August 

1. Ck# 226714 / for $1, 973,197.27 / to Alten Construc�on Inc (Object Code 6211 = main
contractor) / for Lake ES Why such large monthly mounts – cause company is the DBE and
paying other contractors? From Updated FMP (2021) approved budget = $65.6 million.

2. Ck# 226692 / architect SVCS / Resource Code = 9745 (bond D) / for Kennedy HS CNP (cri�cal
needs project)  So far checks for Kennedy HS was from Measure R (9747) related to bleachers
now check from Measure D (9745) Is this a new project star�ng? Check Project Status Chart
and FMP Update 2021.

3. Ck# 227073 / Orbach Huff & Henderson / legal fee for Lake ES (See July # 3)
4. Ck #226983 / What does FOC stand for?

Page 67 of 71



Page 68 of 71



Page 69 of 71



Superintendent’s Designee:  Luis Freese 
BOE Liaison: Trustee Leslie Reckler 

1 Position numbers were assigned by the CBOC for reference purposes only 
2 Proposition 39, CBOC was established by the Board of Education on April 9, 2003.  All appointments are made by the Board of Education. Terms are for two (2) years with a maximum of three 
consecutive terms. 

No.1 Category2 Nominated By Member Name 
City of 

Residence Office 

Dates 
Board 
Approved 

Current 
Term 
End 
Date 

1st, 2nd 
or 3rd 

Term? 
1 Business Organization * Business Organization 
2 Senior Citizen Organization * Senior Citizen Organization 

3 Taxpayers’ Organization * Taxpayers’ Organization Lorraine Humes San Pablo Chair    3-1-23 3-23-25 Third 

4 
Parent or Guardian* Parent or Guardian 

Parent/Guardian & PTA* PTA/School Site Council Brendan Daughton Richmond Vice Chair    3-15-23 3-14-25 First 

5 At Large Community Member Self-Nomination Jia Ma El Cerrito 1-11-23 1-10-25 First 
7 At Large Community Member Self-Nomination Don Gosney Richmond 11-1-23 10-31-25 First 
8 At Large Community Member Self-Nomination 
9 At Large Community Member Self-Nomination Ariel Xi Richmond 4-12-23 4-11-25    First 

10 At Large Community Member Self-Nomination 

11 At Large Community Member Self-Nomination 

Description Number 
Authorized Positions 11 
Filled Positions 5 
Vacant Positions 6 
Pending Applications 1 
Quorum Requirement 3 

Page 70 of 71



At endance / Roster for 2023 
Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sep. Oct. Nov. Dec. Term dates (Term #) 

John Anderson P P P A(+) P A(+) A(+) P P X No longer a commit ee member 6/9/22 – 6/8/24 (2) 
Brendan Havenar-Daughton P P A(+) A(+) A(+) P P X 3/15/23 – 3/14/25 (1) 
Sallie DeWit  A (-) A (-) No longer a commit ee member 3/24/21 – 3/23/23 (3) 
Lorraine Humes P P P P P P P P P X 3/24/22 – 3/23/24 (3) 
Anton Jungherr P P P P P P P No longer a commit ee member 3/15/23 - 3/14/25 (1) 
Jason Lindsey A (-) A (-) P A(-) A(-) No longer a commit ee member 6/2/21 – 6/1/23 (1) 
Jia Ma P P A(-) P A(-) P P P X 1/11/23 – 1/10/25 (1) 
Tamecia Vallot P A(-) P P A(+) A(+) A(+) No longer a commit ee member 3/15/23 – 3/14/25 (1) 
Ariel Xi P A(+) P P P X 4/12/23 – 4/11/25 (1) 
Don Gosney 11/1/23 – 10/31/25 (1) 
P = Present 
A (+) = Absent with no�fica�on 
A (-) = Absent without no�fica�on   
X = No mee�ng (Apr. = Lack of Quorum) 

Page 71 of 71


	2b. Site Visits Training.pdf
	Site Visits
	Site Visits – A Look and See Experience
	Get Ready – your preparation
	Exteriors
	Interior – Before upgrades
	Interior – After Construction is complete
	Construction Guidelines
	Construction  - Discoveries
	Review – A Finish Product?
	A little analysis/ Reporting
	CBOC Focus

	F1b. CBOC PMP _Nov. 2023.pdf
	West Contra Costa Unified School District
	Background
	Program Management Plan: �Supplemental
	Question #1: Acronyms
	Question #2: Agencies Having Jurisdiction
	Question #3: Contractor v. Design Builder
	Question #4: Change Orders�(Proposed Change Order v Change Order)
	Question #4: Change Orders �(Board Approval / Ratification)
	Question #5: Construction Consultants�Architects, Inspectors & Construction Managers
	Slide Number 10

	F2. Project Update 11.13.2023.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Project Status Update
	Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement
	Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement
	Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement
	Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement
	Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement
	Lake Elementary School Campus Replacement
	Hercules Middle and High School�Critical Needs Project  
	Hercules M. & H.S. Critical Needs Project
	Hercules M. & H.S. Critical Needs Project
	Kennedy and Richmond HS and Stege ES�Modernization Projects 
	Defining Project Scopes
	Project Parameters
	Measure R Bond + State Facilities Revenue
	Recommendations To The Board For Funding 
	Approved Measure R Implementation Plan
	Approved Option - KHS
	Approved Option - KHS
	Approved Option - RHS
	Slide Number 21

	4a. Project Status Report - Cameron & Collins OCT 2023-v1.pdf
	Sheet1

	G1b. 2023.09.11.CBOC draft Meeting minutes.pdf
	DISTRICT REPORTS:
	DISCUSSION
	REFERENCE DOCUMENTS
	NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING
	I. October 16, 2023  6pm
	B. ADJOURNMENT
	A. Meeting adjourned at 8:30 pm

	Discussion Item_Accounts Payable Review.pdf
	AP Checklist - July 1 of 2
	AP Check list - July 2 of 2
	AP Checklist Aug 1 of 2
	AP Check list - Aug 2 of 2




